Notes to the Financial Statements

B 285 e P

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”). The HKFRSs include all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretation (“HKAS - Int”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) which are effective for accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2005. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of buildings, available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or
loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

i TR
S5 R A S W AR T 0 2% BOR R T
3o W 547 U 51 L5 OO A T L A 4 1
P fCHE T

7S o T B R R AR R o R R MR (T B
B HE R ] ) A o TR 5 M S ) B0 E A 0 TR 7 o
B R B A 2 R R IR R D (R i
e ) JOHR R T % A R IR R AR —
A — B SR a st I AR A5 G B ok B
e HEURE Sk A T A o - ST A T 8t B B
JEE ~ 5 % ST (B 955 8 4R 25 51 IR 1) B 5 A R B R
B (CELEAT A B TR DL RSB Y 20 &l 4
NP E SR AR B T -

i A 5 B 5 ) B o R o O T TR
B Al 5o T I G A L A R A R e
SRR T AT HL T o 5 B R O I R e
e ) R > B I 3B A B R R R Rk
Al S5 F) SR 06 > 7E B RE 50 480 58

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED &A% B2 w]

43



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 285 e P

2 THEADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs

In 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised standards and

interpretation of HKFRSs below, which are relevant to its

operations. The 2004 comparatives have been amended as

required, in accordance with the relevant requirements.

HKAS 1
HKAS 2
HKAS 7
HKAS 8

HKAS 10
HKAS 12
HKAS 14
HKAS 16
HKAS 17
HKAS 18
HKAS 19
HKAS 21
HKAS 24
HKAS 27

HKAS 28
HKAS 32

HKAS 33
HKAS 36
HKAS 39

HKAS 40
HKAS-Int 4

HKAS-Int 12

HKAS-Int 15

HKAS-Int 21

HKERS 2

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

Events after Balance Sheet Date

Income Taxes

Segment Reporting

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates

Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
Presentation

Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Investment Property

Leases-Determination of the Length of Lease Term
in respect of Hong Kong Land Lease (effective
on 24 May 2005)

Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities

Operating Leases — Incentives

Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-

Depreciable Assets
Share-based Payment
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2 THEADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(cont’d)
2.1 Effects of adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The adoption of HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 24,
27, 28, 33, 36 and HKAS-Ints 4, 12 and 15 did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In

summary:

o HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of the share of
net after-tax results of associate and disclosure of the
financial statements.

e HKASs2,7,8,10,12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 27, 28, 33, 36 and
HKAS-Ints 4, 12 and 15 have no material effect on the
Group’s accounting policies.

o HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related
parties and some other related-party disclosures.

The effects of the adoption of certain new HKFRSs, which
result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies, are set out below.

HKAS 17

The adoption of HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy relating to the reclassification of leasehold
land and land use rights from property, plant and equipment
to operating leases. The up-front prepayments made for the
leasehold land and land use rights are expensed in the profit
and loss account on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease or where there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the profit and loss account. In prior years,
leasehold land was accounted for at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss. Further, following the adoption of HKAS 17 where
leasehold land and land use rights are subject to
amortization, the accounting policy on buildings has been
changed and buildings are now stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. In prior years,
buildings were stated at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment. The above
changes in accounting policies have been applied
retrospectively and comparative amounts have been
restated accordingly. The resulting effect on the profit and
loss account of the Group is set out in notes 2.2 and 2.3 below.
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2 THEADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(cont’d)
2.1 Effects of adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (cont'd)

HKASs 32 and 39

Following the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39, all derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group are stated
at fair value. Changes in their fair value are recognized in
the profit and loss account. The above change in accounting
policy was adopted by way of an adjustment to the opening
balances of retained earnings as at 1 January 2005.
Comparative amounts have not been restated nor has the
opening balance of the fair value reserve been restated as
this is prohibited by the transitional arrangements in HKAS
39. The resulting effect on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in notes 2.2 and 2.3 below.

HKAS 40 and HKAS-Int 21

In prior years, changes arising on the revaluation of the
Group’s investment properties were recognized directly in
the property revaluation reserve except when, on a portfolio
basis, the reserve was insufficient to cover a deficit on the
portfolio, in which case the excess was charged to the profit
and loss account. When a deficit previously recognized in
the profit and loss account reversed, the reversal was
recognized as a credit in the profit and loss account. The
Group was required to apply the tax rate that would be
applied for the recovery of carrying amount of the
investment properties through sale to determine whether
any amounts of deferred tax liabilities arising from the
revaluation of investment properties.

Following the adoption of HKAS 40, changes in the fair values
of investment properties are recorded in the profit and loss
account in accordance with the fair value model in HKAS
40. There is no requirement for the Group to restate the
comparative information and accordingly, any adjustment
relating to the treatment of the property revaluation surplus
has made to the retained earnings as at 1 January 2005,
including the reclassification of any amount held in the
property revaluation reserve.

As from 1 January 2005, in accordance with HKAS-Int 21, the
Group recognizes deferred tax liabilities on movements in
the value of an investment property using tax rates that are
applied for recovery of the carrying value of the investment
properties through use, if the Group has no intention to sell
it and the property would have been depreciable had the
Group not adopted the fair value model. The resulting effect
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in notes
2.2 and 2.3 below.
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2 THEADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(cont’d)
2.1 Effects of adoption new/revised HKFRSs (cont’d)

HKFRS 2

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with
HKERS 2, the Group recognizes the fair value of such share
options as an expense in the profit and loss account. A
corresponding increase is recognized in the employee share-
based compensation reserve under equity. As a transition
provision, the cost of share options granted after 7 November
2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January 2005 was expensed
retrospectively in the profit and loss account of the respective
periods. In prior years, no amounts were recognized for
equity-settled share-based payment transactions in the
Group, including the share options granted to employees or
directors of the Group to acquire shares of the Company at
specified exercise prices under the share option scheme
operated by the Group. The resulting effect on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in notes 2.2 and 2.3 below.
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2 THEADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs
(cont'd)
2.2 Effects of adoption of new/revised HKFRSs on consolidated

RGP 4 s Y 1k s e
(%)
22 SREHIT 80T B A R

profit and loss account 2R
Effects of adopting
Bz e
HKAS 32 &
HKAS 39 HKAS 17 HKFRS 2 Total
(Fda
He Ul (B#aE  (FEHK
325 & # U B u)
55 395% W17 2% R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W or BT or BT T BT or
Effects for the year ended 31 December 2005 ¥ # % % H4+ A
=t-AZzpE
Increase in net unrealized fair value losses MAESMTRZ K88
on derivative financial instruments 8T 18 M s 4R B (2,620) - - (2,620)
Increase in employee benefit expenses 1R 548 1 B 24 - = (570) (570)
Increase in amortization of leasehold land L A b R - o i
and land use rights B 518 - (1,012) - (1,012)
Decrease in depreciation of property, W3 B SR g
plant and equipment NEWD - 918 - 918
Decrease in profit attributable to shareholders [ # 1 it % 71 38 2> (2,620) (94) (570) (3,284)
Decrease in basic earnings per share (cents) %A Z Fl i 2 () (1.17) (0.04) (0.25) (1.46)
Decrease in diluted earnings per share (cents) 4 i # % 2 Fl i 2> () (1.17) (0.04) (0.25) (1.46)
Effects for the year ended 31 December 2004 ¥ # % ~ZZNUE+ A
=t—Hzp®
Increase in employee benefit expenses 1R 548 1 B 52 4 - = (416) (416)
Increase in amortization of leasehold land LG A b K b i
and land use rights 45 55 38 — (1,012) = (1,012)
Decrease in depreciation of property, )3 B Sk i
plant and equipment nEWD - 845 - 845
Decrease in unrealized gain on revaluation ~— H i EWE 2 K5
of other properties Wi 43 38 D - (2,764) = (2,764)
Increase in loss attributable to shareholders ik 5 JE {5 i 18 4 i1 - (2,931) (416) (3,347)
Increase in basic loss per share (cents) A B3R s R B i () = (1.31) (0.19) (1.49)
Increase in diluted loss per share (cents) 5 9 s AR A (L) - (1.31) (0.19) (1.49)
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2 THEADOPTION OF NEW/REVISED HKFRSs 2
(cont'd)
2.3 Effects of adoption of new/revised HKFRSs on consolidated

RGP 4 s Y 1k s e
(%)
2.3 SREOHIT B AT IR O A R

balance sheet iRz ®
Effects of adopting
i3 P42
HKAS 32 &
HKAS 39 HKAS40 HKAS 17 HKEFRS 2 Total
(B
) (BEaE (BERE (BREH
B3R HEH) WD WD
399 %403 W17 25k Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFIT  B¥Fr B¥Fr  EB¥EFr BETFI
At 31 December 2005 RoEERLFE+A=+—H
Increase/ (decrease) in assets EESN/ (8D)
Leasehold land and land use rights L A R s 0 R B - - 49,456 = 49,456
Property, plant and equipment VER YT - - (48,909) - (48,909)
Derivative financial instruments MEEMTR 51 - - - 51
51 - 547 - 598
Increase/ (decrease) in liabilities/equity £ & /# % /(i)
Deferred income tax liabilities BT AR A M - - (329) - (329)
Employee share-based compensation  {f B /it i 4 B f s
reserve - - - 1,100 1,100
Revaluation reserve B4 - (44) (1,348) = (1,392)
Profit attributable to shareholders Bt R A4 28 ] (2,620) = (94) (570) (3,284)
Derivative financial instruments fEsm IR 1,283 - - - 1,283
Retained earnings REEF 1,388 44 2,318 (530) 3,220
51 - 547 - 598
At 31 December 2004 REFFEWEFZA=+—H
Increase/ (decrease) in assets BEN/ (5D)
Leasehold land and land use rights HHLE - B o 0 - - 50,468 - 50,468
Property, plant and equipment VES S Y& = = (49,827) - (49,827)
- - 641 - 641
Increase/ (decrease) in liabilities/equity £ f& /% /(i)
Deferred income tax liabilities R A T 7580 B B - = (329) = (329)
Employee share-based compensation  {E £ % {7 B f% i
reserve - - - 530 530
Revaluation reserve EX A - - (1,348) = (1,348)
Retained earnings T8z A - - 2,318 (530) 1,788
- - 641 - 641
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Consolidation

3 BHEEHHEOR

3.1

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up

to 31 December.

3.2 Subsidiaries

3.2

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose

entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies generally accompanying a

shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The

existence and effect of potential voting rights that are

currently exercisable or convertible are considered when

assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated

from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains

on transactions between group companies are eliminated.

Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction

provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed

where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in

subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment

losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

3.3 Associate

3.3

Associates are all entities over which the Group has

significant influence but not control,

generally

accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of

the voting rights Investments in associates are accounted

for by the equity method of accounting and are initially

recognized at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits

or losses is recognized in the profit and loss account, and its

share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognized in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any

other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognize

further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

3.3

3.4

3.5

Associate (cont'd)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of associated companies are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other

economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HK
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in
the profit and loss account.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEfFER (&)
(cont’d)

3.5 Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(@)

(c)

Transactions and balances (contd)

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equity instruments held at fair value through profit
or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on non-monetary items, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit and loss
account are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognized
as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold,
such exchange differences are recognized in the profit
and loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

3.6 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly warehouse and offices. Buildings

are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment. All other property, plant and equipment is

stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment

losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)

3.6

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the profit and loss account during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 20% - 50%
Furniture and equipment 20% -331/3%
Plant and machinery 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is provided to write off cost of lease
prepayments on a straight-line basis over the respective
periods of the lease and the land use rights.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents investment in land and
buildings on which construction work has not been
completed, and is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditure incurred and other direct costs
attributable to the construction less impairment losses.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment
when the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

No amortisation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEfFER (&)

(cont’d)

3.9 Investment properties

3.9 BHEWE

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
companies in the consolidated Group, is classified as
investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease

is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at
fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are
performed in accordance with the guidance issued by the
international Valuation Standards Committee. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the
market has become less active, continues to be measured at

fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash
outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.
Some of those outflows are recognized as a liability, including
finance lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property; others, including contingent rent
payments, are not recognized in the profit and loss account.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(cont’d)

3.9 Investment properties (cont'd)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the profit and
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loss account during the financial period in which they are IR

incurred. Changes in fair values are recognized in the profit

and loss account.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. Property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property is classified
as property, plant and equipment and stated at cost until
construction or development is complete, at which time it
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is reclassified and subsequently accounted for as investment

property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognized in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
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previous impairment loss, the gain is recognized in the profit

and loss account.

Investment property held for sale without redevelopment is
classified within non-current assets held for sale, under

HKERS 5.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(cont’d)

3.10 Impairment of assets

3 TR (8)

3.10 ¥ @ Wi

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to

amortization, which are at least tested annually for
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

3.11 Investments

From 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004:

The Group classified its investment in securities, other than
subsidiaries and associate, as non-trading securities and
other investment.

(a) Non-trading securities

Non-trading securities are stated in the consolidated
balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve until
the security is sold, collected or otherwise disposed of,
or until there is objective evidence that the security is
impaired, at which time the relevant cumulative gain
or loss is transferred from the investment revaluation
reserve to the consolidated profit and loss account.

Fair value is estimated by the directors by reference to
quoted market prices, where available, or, where there
is no open market for the investment, following a
number of general principles which are based upon the
British Venture Capital Association guidelines as set out
below.

The directors classify investments either as early stage
or development stage. Early stage investments
represent immature companies, which are typically not
earning significant maintainable profits. Development
stage investments are unquoted investments which are
not early stage investments.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEfFER (&)
(cont’d)

3.11 Investments (cont’d)

(a)

Non-trading securities (cont'd)

Securities are stated at amounts considered by the
directors to be a fair assessment of their value, subject
to overriding requirements of prudence. All securities
are valued according to one of the following bases:

—  Cost (less provision required);
—  Earnings multiple;

- Net assets; or

- Third party transaction.

Early stage investments and development stage
investments which are acquired within one year of the
valuation date are normally valued at cost. Provision
against cost will be made in the light of adverse
circumstances, i.e. if the investment performs
significantly below expectations. Upward adjustments
to cost may be made by reference to the price at which
a subsequent issue of capital is made, or at which a
transaction for cash in the relevant security takes place.
This basis of valuation will only be used when the
transaction involves a significant investment by a new

investor.

Development stage investments held for more than one
year are valued on one of the bases described above.
Whenever possible, investments will be valued by
reference to a third party transaction or quoted price.

Transfers from the investment revaluation reserve to
the consolidated profit and loss account as a result of
impairments are reversed when the circumstances and
events that led to the impairment cease to exist and
there is persuasive evidence that new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future.

Profits or losses on disposal of non-trading securities
are determined as the difference between the estimated
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
securities and are recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account as they arise. On disposal of non-
trading securities, the revaluation surplus or deficit
previously taken to the investment revaluation reserve
is also transferred to the consolidated profit and loss
account for the year.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEfFER (&)

(cont’d)
3.11 Investments (cont’d)
(b) Other investments
Other investments comprise club debentures and are
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognized in the consolidated
profit and loss accounts as they arise.

From 1 January 2005 onwards:

The Group classifies its investments in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the investments were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its investments
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated
by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
they are either held for trading or are expected to be
realized within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor
with no intention of trading the receivable. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are included in trade and other receivables in the
balance sheet.

(c) Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
During the year, the Group did not hold any
investments in this category.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEfFER (&)
(cont’d)
3.11 Investments (cont’d)

3.11 #¥% (8)
(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (@ AR G

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Investments are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are included in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.
Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognized in equity. When
securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments are
included in the profit and loss account as gains or losses
from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is
not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s
specific circumstances.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 FEfFER (&)

(cont’d)

3.11 Investments (cont’d)

3.11

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (cont'd)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available for sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered in determining
whether the securities are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognized in the profit and loss account -
is removed from equity and recognized in the profit and
loss account. Impairment losses recognized in the
profit and loss account on equity instruments are not
reversed through the profit and loss account.

3.12 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated
sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

3.13 Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised when incurred.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue and contract costs are
recognised over the period of the contract, respectively, as
revenues and expenses. The Group uses the percentage of
completion method to determine the appropriate amount
of revenue and costs to be recognised in a given period. When
it is probable total contract costs will exceed total contract
revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expenses
immediately.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(cont’d)

3.13 Construction contracts (cont’d)

3.13

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit/loss
recognised on each contract is compared with the progress
billings up to the year-end. Where costs incurred and
attributable profits (less foreseeable losses) exceed progress
billings, the balance is shown as due from customers on
construction contracts, under current assets. Where progress
billings exceed costs incurred plus attributable profits (less
foreseeable losses), the balance is shown as due to customers
on construction contracts, under current liabilities.

3.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognized in the profit and loss account.

3.15 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated profit and loss account. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(cont’d)

3.16 Borrowing

3.16

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue
or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including
fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and
dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible bond is
determined using a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a liability
on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option. This is recognized and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated profit and
loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

3.17 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and
the party are subject to common control or common
significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or
other entities.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet. For
the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, short-term
deposits and bank loans with original maturity of three
months or less and bank overdrafts.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 F#sheiR (&)
(cont’d)
3.19 Employee benefits

(a)

@)

(c)

Long service payments

Provision for long service payments is recognised for
the best estimate of the long service payments that are
required to be made to the employees of the Group in
respect of their services to date less any amounts that
would be expected to be met out of the Group’s
retirement schemes.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
by the Group for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the profit and loss account, and a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 F#sheiR (&)
(cont’d)
3.19 Employee benefits (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

0]

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognizes a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a constructive obligation.

Pension obligations

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme regulated under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO”) and AIA-JF
Premium Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”),
collectively known as (“Retirement Schemes”) which
are available to all employees. Contributions to the
Retirement Schemes by the Group and employees are
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries. The Retirement Schemes cost charged to the
consolidated profit and loss account represents
contributions paid or payable by the Group to the
Retirement Schemes.

The Group’s contributions to Retirement Schemes are
expensed as incurred. Contributions to the ORSO
scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. The assets of the Retirement
Schemes are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognizes
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either: terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan
without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after balance sheet date are
discounted to present value.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(cont’d)
3.20 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are not recognized for future

operating losses.

3.21 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of
an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then
be recognised as a provision.

3.22 Operating lease
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in
the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

3.23 Revenue recognition
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered at customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when customers have accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

Revenue from individual construction contract is recognised
by using the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the revenue earned to date as determined by
surveyors compared with the total estimated revenue of the
contract.

Commission income received and receivable from principals
on distributorship agency business is recognised when
services are rendered and goods are distributed to third
parties by the principals.
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3 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(cont’d)

3.23 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

3.23

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is
recognized either as cash is collected or on a cost-recovery
basis as conditions warrant.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised in
the profit and loss account in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term.

3.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

3.25 Derivative financial instruments

From 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004:

Derivative financial instruments are designated ‘hedging’ or
‘non-hedging instruments’. The transactions which,
according to the Group’s policy for risk management, are able
to meet the conditions for hedge accounting are classified
as hedging transactions; the others, although set up for the
purpose of managing risk (since the Group’s policy does not
permit speculative transactions), have been designated as
‘trading’. The Group records derivative financial instruments
at cost. The gains and losses on derivative financial
instruments are included in the profit and loss account on
maturity to match the underlying hedged transactions where
relevant.

From 1 January 2005 onwards:

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date
the financial derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value.

The fair value is determined based on the market prices in
an active market including recent market transactions or
valuation techniques, using discounted cash flow and
options pricing models, as appropriate. For derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair value are recognised immediately in the
profit or loss account.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

4 W% LB 4 B
41 B K

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest risk
and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow
interest-rate risk. The Group’s risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Under the Group’s risk management programme, each
department identifies and documents their key tasks and the
risks associated with their tasks. The risks are summarized
in a risk assessment program where they are graded by
likelihood and consequence and where the procedure and
controls for managing the risks are recorded.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures. Foreign exchange risk
arises from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. To mitigate
risks arising from fluctuations in exchanges rates,
forward foreign exchange contracts are used to
hedge the currency exposure of the Group.

(ii) Pricerisk
The Group is exposed to price risk since
investments held by the Group are classified as
available for sale financial assets and are
measured at fair value at each balance sheet date.

(b) Creditrisk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of goods
and services are provided to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The Group manages its
exposure to derivative counter-parties by taking into
account their financial strength and are limited to high-
credit-quality financial institutions.

(¢) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due
to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group maintains flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)

4.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

4.1

(d) Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities. The Group’s income and operating cash
flow are substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

4.2 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and
available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial
liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses
a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques,
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.
The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair
value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined
using forward exchange market rates at the balance sheet
date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of assets when
events of changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable annually in
accordance with relevant accounting standards. An
impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of
an asset is lower than the greater of its net selling price or
the value in use. In determining the value in use,
management assess the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the
asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Estimates and judgements are applied in determining these
future cash flows and the discount rate.

(b) Impairment of receivables
The impairment of receivables is assessed based on the
evaluation of the collectibility and aging analysis, including
the credit worthiness and the collection history of each
customer. Judgement is required when assessing the
realisablility of these receivables.

(c) Estimates of fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are revalued at the
balance sheet date on market value basis by independent
professional valuers. Such valuation is based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and may
differ from actual results. In making the judgement, the
Group considers information from current price in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date.

5 B o el A 5 B ON i

Al R ) BT i 45 R A A S0 AR R 1 A B A L
b R BT R AR ELE TR AT B DL AR LS A 45
4 B A A S B TR

A B 3 R AR AT A B 0B o T A4 09 & R Al 5
U FGE 2 - AR /D BRUFL T R 4 SR A R = AR RO i
BT {8 o AR 3 Y 0 B ) IR TR (BLAR 1 R
AR B A S AR B R R AN R o

(@) WAEMME

78 4 LA BT e T R TRT < AR A U
[e 4 SR T A IR A A B Y
(RO - 3 e FROAH B A 5t MR R B 40
AT WA AT o 8 1A R T ({0 7% T 4 B3 (L
T A 0 {6 0 19 5 P v IR B (LA 1RE T
DAt 3 o A7 UL T PR A O P AR (R
R % R P T AR R A B4R T
T AT 8 FAFJI R 0 A o R AR B < L ek I
IR St BRI A A R B ) i

(b) M WBe e ko
G W e K9k B2 AR 4 T R T A B R P
R BE I AT - NI L RER P 2 R RO A A
e A 8% o TE ST A 5% 55 M WO 3K < die A 8 BLIEE
it AF ) B

() BEWEATFHATE

B 26 T iy B 57 A R A5 5 A g
FLBUAT T2 DA T {4 o 0 6 48 < A R i 1
ToRRAEE TR SOEAT > HOE AT A S WA A
2R H ol BT R A R A EE K 2 B o R K
BT I > A 4 T 225 0 R 0 T BT 2
I ARSI AR A AR 2 UL
R i Z Rk
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TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUES AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Group are trading in, and the supply
and installation, of building products and engineering equipment
and a distributorship agency business. The principal activities of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

CEX AEY LN Tig hgt

A TR S S S TR M A
JRE % 2 45 LA B 3 G AR L2 o 4% B oG A Wl 2 3
SET5 7 R BT R R B 20

2005 2004
“RBHAE | CFEN4E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT BWET T
Turnover wEH
Sales of inventories BEFEIA 292,347 315,362
Revenue from construction contracts BELS WA - 249
Commission income A ON 91 5,545
292,438 321,156
Other revenues LA i A
Interest income from bank deposits A AT 2 LR A 1,364 442
Administration fee received from the associate i) — [ 28 2 R e B2 A B
(note 37(a)) (Kt ##37(a)) 420 948
Gross rental income from investment properties Y 2 R AU A
(note 37(b)) (Kt aE37(b)) 717 612
Gain on disposal of property, plant and B 2 B A R kAR
equipment - 4
Sundry income Ak TE i A 1,298 1,837
3,799 3,843
Total revenues AN 296,237 324,999

Primary reporting format — business segments
The analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out below.

The Group is organised into two main business segments, being
the trading in and the supply and installation of building products
and engineering equipment.

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise holding of
investment properties and other properties, neither of which are
of a sufficient size to be reported separately.

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

The operation of the business is mainly carried in two main
geographical areas, Hong Kong and Macau as well as Mainland
China.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED A% A B 2wl

HEERIGTX -EHIH
A 4 4 TR 3 B 25 Bt I BT A 22 20 A 81
o

AL 2 BTy Ay W OH — S i R TR R
2 S IR R 2k

SR B 2 H A B 5 A A 1 S B A )
2o M DL B A5 TH 2 BB R LA ST 2 e
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6 TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUES AND 6 # X% -HKAXESBER

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) (%)
Primary reporting format - business segments CE:ES VENE 3 it
Building Engineering Other
products equipment operations Elimination The Group
2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R TRBHE  EbEH Ha A
ZRRNE ZRRHE ZERLE _RFHE ZERLE
BWTL  BWTLZ  B¥TIX  B¥%TL  BWFTX
Turnover HEH
External sales ShR B E 257,885 34,553 - - 292,438
Inter-segment sales ES 1ba 34,916 - - (34,916) -
292,801 34,553 - (34,916) 292,438
Segment results ik ES 22,467 626 (5,670) = 17,423
Unallocated costs &4 R AR (15,475)
Operating profit e =il 1,948
Finance costs g % ¥l (23)
Share of loss of an associate i /il E - - - - -
Profit before income tax B 15 B 0 3 ) 1,925
Income tax expense Fr 38 (301)
Profit attributable to shareholders B B A 3 1,624
Segment assets NEEE 91,868 11,821 92,822 = 196,511
Interest in an associate kgl & - - 64 - 64
Unallocated assets KB EE 71,641
Total assets BEE 268,216
Segment liabilities NEAR (55,751) (8,551) (2,904) = (67,206)
Unallocated liabilities oA K (5,270)
Total liabilities AR (72,476)
Capital expenditure B L (14,618) 4) (558) = (15,180)
Other non-cash expenses JoAl 7 B4 B 3
Depreciation of property, plant and EN S V&L Kk
equipment (1,003) (72) (1,176) - (2,251)
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHLE 4 st % A O
land use rights - - (1,012) - (1,012)
Provision for impairment of receivables JRE W O 4 (1,209) (173) = = (1,382)
Write back provision for impairment JHE WS 9 £ ¢
of receivables 2,128 813 - - 2,941
Provision for stock obsolescence 08 IR 7 R (51) (6) - = (57)
Write back provision for stock obsolescence 4 i 77 £ 1 ft 1 [ 442 2 - - 444
Provision for long service payments MRS 5 Bt 74 (15) 37 - 96
Provision for employee leave entitlements 1 B 6 = 1B S 13t (182) (122) (41) - (345)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

Primary reporting format — business segments (cont'd)

6 TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUES AND 6 ‘%‘é&)ﬁiﬁf&%]\l’(ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
b2 |
RO R — AR ()

Building Engineering Other
products equipment operations Elimination  The Group
(restated) (restated)
2004 2004 2004 2004 2004
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HHE T &M HAob 35 g AEH
(EF) (E7)
ZEFNE ZEFNE ZERNE ZFZNE ZZENE
BT BT BT BT BT
Turnover BEH
External sales SN B B 265,870 55,286 - - 321,156
Inter-segment sales EBHHE 36,263 - - (36,263) -
302,133 55,286 - (36,263) 321,156
Segment results ik ES 23,054 (672) (5,454) = 16,928
Unallocated costs &4 LR AR (16,443)
Operating profit A 485
Finance costs WA & (54)
Share of loss of an associate JE A B 2 2 W s 1R - - (1,065) - (1,065)
Loss before income tax B 15 B i i 48 (634)
Income tax expense 8 (226)
Loss attributable to shareholders B B 1 s 18 (860)
Segment assets AHERE 82,719 15,838 94,808 - 193,365
Interest in an associate W E A 4 = - 265 — 265
Unallocated assets KOG E 85,363
Total assets MG E 278,993
Segment liabilities NEAR (56,379) (13,765) (2,603) = (72,747)
Unallocated liabilities oA K (13,754)
Total liabilities AR (86,501)
Capital expenditure EAB % (1,414) (86) (1,811) = (3,311)
Other non-cash expenses Ho I B4 B 5
Depreciation of property, plant and EN S V&L Kk
equipment (2,800) (150) (1,440) - (4,390)
Amortisation of leasehold land and FHLE - st % A O
land use rights = = (1,012) = (1,012)
Provision for impairment of receivables JE e 3 L4 (1,941) (841) = = (2,782)
Write back provision for impairment TR W i (28 £ 18
of receivables 2,307 2,977 = = 5,284
Provision for stock obsolescence 08 IR A B R (469) - - = (469)
Provision for long service payments R s 4 Al 41 274 177 = 492
Provision for employee leave entitlements 1 5 fE 5 {5 03 1% i (134) (64) (12) - (210)
Unrealised gain on revaluation of BiHEE
investment property Z R BB i - - 57 - 57
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6 TURNOVER, OTHER REVENUES AND 6 ®&¥#%i H{buW A X4 B%EFR

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) (%)
Secondary reporting format - geographical segments KELHG X — R E
Segment Capital
Turnover results Total assets expenditure
2005 2005 2005 2005

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEW Vg E3 W BB X
ZRRLF ZFRAF CFREHF ZFRALA
#WTI #WTI #WTI #WT I

Hong Kong and Macau s RO M 273,333 54,073 174,323 3,387
Mainland China o A 19,105 3,274 22,188 11,793
292,438 57,347 15,180
Unallocated costs A3 S A (55,399)
Operating profit 4875 i A 1,948
Interest in an associate [ = /NEIR 64
Unallocated assets Ao L A 71,641
Total assets B 268,216
Segment Capital
Turnover results  Total assets expenditure
(restated) (restated)
2004 2004 2004 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEH R B BB S
(E ) (E )

SEFWE CFFWE CFIWE CFENE
BETT  ETT  BETT EETT

Hong Kong and Macau s B 307,511 54,793 186,745 2,017

Mainland China R A b 13,645 2,116 6,620 1,294
321,156 56,909 3,311

Unallocated costs &4 L A (56,424)

Operating profit K8 A 485

Interest in an associate Wt % ) i 265

Unallocated assets Ao B 85,363

Total assets Mg 278,993
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7 COST OF SALES 7 BEEAR

2005 2004
TRBHAE | CETNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Cost of inventories sold B B RAR 231,372 260,419
Cost of construction contracts AL A B (1,985) 1,876
Cost of consumable stocks R B AR 1,762 1,825
Sub-contracting fee on construction contracts BESHZ M - 28

Net unrealized fair value loss on derivative fitE&m TR REHR
financial instruments 2N TEAE T B 1R 2,620 -
233,769 264,148
Note: Based on the latest assessment of total contract costs for the i A R R SE S P A A AR BB T A 2 R T

contracting business, a net amount of HK$1,985,000 has been
credited (2004: HK$29,000 has been debited) to cost of sales to reflect
a change in estimate of contract costs for the year ended 31
December 2005.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED A% A B2 w]
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8 OPERATING EXPENSES

8 KEBHMX

(restated)
(F5Y)
2005 2004
“RRRAE | CERNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T
Administrative expenses: TTBCE
Employee benefit expenses (note 10) 1 B A& I B =2 (Mt 10) 32,702 29,726
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) WM (A1) 6,724 9,900
Depreciation of property, plant and W3 B MR I
equipment (note 18) (MfzE18) 2,251 4,390
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights £ & b K + 3t i /7 3 8 8 1,012 1,012
Operating lease rentals on properties paid to MEFEMH =52
third parties BAETHA 4 2,818 2,480
Travelling expenses PSR 2,199 1,153
Entertainment expenses S 907 608
Management fee (CEi R I 1,360 1,200
Stamps, postage and telephone S~ W K T AE AE 1,029 1,081
Auditors’ remuneration 12 B HT T 4 1,614 1,292
Legal and professional fees 12 N B IR T 1,437 1,395
Advertising & promotion expenses JBE 45 K H: i 2 568 728
54,621 54,965
Other operating expenses: JF Al A8 7 B 3
Write back provision for impairment of receivables & i 3K i (B 45 # 1 =] (2,941) (5,284)
Provision for impairment of receivables JRE AT K ok (L B A 1,382 2,782
Write back provision for stock obsolescence AR R A B 3 e 4 1) (444) =
Provision for stock obsolescence i I A7 B 57 469
Provision for long service payments 1= 30 R 5 <5 48 A (96) (492)
Provision for employee leave entitlements 1 B M == 1R 4 43¢ 4 345 210
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 47 2 - % 2% & 34l 2 i5 18 39 -
Exchange difference SR (125) (289)
Sundry expenses M TE B 2 7,682 8,062
5,899 5,458
60,520 60,423
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9 FINANCE COSTS 9 WHRM
2005 2004
ZRRHAE | EFNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Interest expenses on short-term bank loans R ERAT B M IE ST 2
and overdrafts S B S 23 54
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10 & 5 & A B 3¢

(restated)
(F75Y)
2005 2004
ZRBHAE | ZEFNF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT BWET T
Wages and salaries T % 30,851 28,016
Termination benefits figk 4 4 18 328 628
Contributions to ORSO scheme (note 12) AR B K (M E12) 516 311
Contributions to MPF scheme (note 12) AR A Eh B R (MR 12) 437 355

Employee share-based compensation benefits 18 B M == i et ) 2 AR
(note 32) (Kt it32) 570 416
32,702 29,726
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’

EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors
pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance is as follows:

@ HHME
AR T s 2 7 0 161 B R A T o
BT 4 S0

11 FHEHHREBRABRZMNE

2005 2004

TRBHAE | ETNE

HK$’000 HK$'000

W T T T

Fees Ml 4 750 700
Salary and other benefits 3 4 I At AR R 5,009 8,285
Discretionary bonus 1 1% 1€ 4T 438 312
Year end bonus A HAE AT 194 161
Retirement Schemes contributions AR E T E K 333 442
6,724 9,900

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of
HK$750,000 (2004: HK$700,000) paid to non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors during

RN S P AR RS T IR LT
=KL I AT E #2415 750,0000T
(—F Y4 3 #700,0000T) °

the year.
The emoluments of the directors fell within the following HHM e WBEMT
bands:
Number of directors
WA

2005 2004
Emoluments’ band [ e ] ZRBHAE | ZFFNE
HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 5 M % o0 — i % 1,000,00000 5 5
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 7 11,000,001 7T — ¥ % 1,500,0007C - 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 #5 % 1,500,0017C — ¥ #2,000,0007C 2 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 #5 % 2,000,001 7T — ¥ #2,500,0007C 1 -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 #5 % 2,500,001 7T — ¥ #3,000,0007C - -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 ¥ 13,000,001 7T — ¥ ¥ 3,500,0007C - 1
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’

EMOLUMENTS (cont’d)

(a)

(b)

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED A% A B2 w]

Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

(#1)

(a)

W 4 ()

11 EHEFHREMABZHNE

The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 BE_FEREF A=+ —HILEE &
December 2005 is set out below: ZEHRM T
Retirement
scheme
Discretionary ~ Yearend contribution Other 2005 2004
Name of Director Fee Salary bonus bonus B4 benefits Total Total
Wa ¥4 Wbk esEL HERE HEEA A am
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Wizt BETT BRTr BFTT B¥TT BETx BT BRTr BT
Michael John Green KB - 1,636 - 68 164 360 2,228 3,487
Daniel George Green e B 0] - 937 126 63 7 576 1,777 1,092
Lai Ka Tak, Patrick R - 1,500 312 63 94 - 1,969 1,803
Woo Chun Yu, Adolf HEF (i) - - - - - - - 1,393
Leung Tak Tong, Eric Py (iii) - - - - - - - 1,425
Augustus Ralph Marshall 150 - - - - - 150 150
Christopher John David Clack i 2% 150 - - - - - 150 150
Simon Murray SR 150 - - - - - 150 150
V-Nee Yeh i 150 - - - - - 150 150
Thaddeus Thomas Beczak (iv) 150 - - - - - 150 100
750 4073 438 194 333 936 6,724 9,900
Notes Wt 2t
(i) appointed on 1 January 2004 ) R-FFNFE—HA—HEEE
(i) resigned on 31 August 2004 () MAoFEEWNENH=+—HBEAT
(iii) resigned on 21 September 2004 (i) RZFFWENA Z+—HEAE
(iv) appointed on 17 May 2004 (ivv RZZEWERA+-LHEZRE
Five highest paid individuals (b) TpilmmMeEz AL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three

(2004: four) were directors whose emoluments are disclosed

in note (a) above. The highest emoluments payable to the

remaining two (2004: one) individual during the year is as

Tz d I 4 N B = (SRR 4
VO 37) 38 5 45 2 B 4 % B SCRM RE (@) 3
B o E N AT H AR W AL (2R B PU4E: —

(ART 31/ E-P NS/

follows:
2005 2004
ZREBHA ZERE LR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT W IEF T
Salary and other benefits 3 4z I At AR A 1,647 753
Discretionary bonus 1) 1 A€ AL 414 367
Year end bonus AR AAE AL 69 32
Retirement Schemes contributions B AR & w1k 3K 120 38
2,250 1,190
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11 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENTS’

12 RETIREMENT SCHEMES

13

EMOLUMENTS (cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (cont’d)

The emoluments of the two (2004: one) individual with the
highest emoluments is within the following band:

11

P AT PN 2 &
(4)
b) HfiBwmMaez AL (&)
WAL (DA — A7) d5e e P4 A 2 P
R T

Number of individuals
A
2005 2004
Emoluments’ band T 4 =2 i I ZREH ZREIYE
HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 5 W% ot — i % 1,000,00000 1 -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 7 % 1,000,001 7T — # ¥ 1,500,0007C 1 1

The Group usually determines and pays discretionary bonus

to employees (including Directors) around January/

February each year based on the actual financial results of

the Group for the preceding year. The discretionary bonuses

shown above therefore represent actual payments to the

employees (including Directors) during the current financial

year in relation to performance for the preceding year.

The Group’s contributions to the ORSO Scheme were reduced by
contributions forfeited on those employees who left the ORSO

Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totalling HK$572,000 (2004: HK$784,000) were fully

utilised during the year.

Contributions of HK$266,000 (2004: HK$216,000) were payable

to the Retirement Schemes at the year-end.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2004:
17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation

on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated

assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in

the countries in which the Group operates.

Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account represents:

A LE B R RN AR A — A S A AR BE B AF
J 2 B B B 2 A A e T UR A 0 T A AE
ALTIRE (RLHEH ) o Bk Bt E A A
FERERINTRA (BFEES) AR —
G BRI AEAL -

12 B 453

13

08 B AT A BOCA 2 K R AR HE AR R T
FU) 8¢ 56 4 342 i 2 A3 S R R WA A 4 T 2 ik
B W 2 A L HE 5 572,00000 (Y 4
7 M 784,0007T) 2B E R AENE) A o

A AE &5 IR > HE AT T 1R K 4 51 2 i 266,000
J6 (ZFF P4« # H216,0000T) ©

7 s M AT BT 8l 4R 0 Al ST HE SR B I R 4% 17.5%
(ZFZPU4E: 17.5%) 2 Bl R B o il HM e A B H
TR 4F (A 2 Al B B Ui R g A AR A 0 SE
T e B K 2 988 B

R A E R R TR B S

2005 2004
ZRBHAE ZERE LR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T

Current income tax A AF B i 15 B
- Hong Kong profits tax — 7 W B 47 34
— Overseas taxation — i S FLIA 254 192
Deferred income tax (note 34) AR GE P S BLIE (M 7E34) = =
301 226
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13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont'd)

The tax on the Group’s profit/ (loss) differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows:

13 Prf388 (4)

A SR A B BRBLAT R Al (B 4R) 2 BLEBLA 24
m) DA s B S T 5 0 PO 4 A 00 R 22 4

14

15

(restated)
(#75)
2005 2004
SRREAE | TR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BWT I T T
Profit/ (loss) before income tax [k JIr 75 8 R 2 R (5 48) 1,925 (634)
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% LR 17.5% % 7 2 BiLIH 337 (111)
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries i B 5 K [ Bi % 2 5 2 145 167
Income not subject to taxation IR B Z WA (550) (980)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes AN AT g A I 1 B B9 BH 52 1,137 914
Tax loss not recognised ¥ oA il 8 ) LS s 1 942 767
Utilisation of previously unrecognized tax losses i R L R A RR 2 B i 1 (1,710) (531)
Income tax expense EET ) 301 226

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders includes a loss of
HK$487,000 (2004: profit of HK$10,469,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the Group’s profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of HK$1,624,000 (2004: Group'’s loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of HK$860,000, as restated) and the weighted
average number of 224,496,000 (2004: 224,496,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of diluted earnings/ (loss) per share is based
on the Group’s profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of HK$1,624,000 (2004: Group’s loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of HK$860,000, as restated) and the weighted
average number of 225,396,000 (2004: 224,496,000) ordinary
shares after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED A% A B2 w]

14 JBEHCHE A e A, O 481)

R R R, E1E) BEFIAARAFIEH K4
B U5 M 487,00000 B9 G 4 (2 F D0 AR - ik B
10,469,000 %z ) °

15 FBRAF, OkiH)

(a)

(b)

FRIEARBA  (EH)
AR, (B THRIEA L B E R
78 I B RO A i R A s 5 1,624,00000
(04 A 42 ) 2 5 2 P I R 45 s
18 46 & 51| £ £ W % 860,00070) K 4F N E B
1735 48 e 2 INRET- 35 $224,496,000/% (=2
Y 4F 1 224,496,000/ ) T

SR EMERA (BH)
IR AR (B R) T ARYE A 5 W 4E R
o A i B AR A i R 40 W 5 1,624,0000T
(T FE U 45 - 7 2 1) 2 5 A B SR A s
18 4% 5 31 49 b ik 15 860,00070) B 48wt T A7
VB A 3 A e 2 0 T S M A o A 2
JBE 0 HE SF- 34 #0225,396,000/8 ( — & & 0 45
224,496,000/%) 55 -
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15 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (cont'd)

15 FR AN O (8)

(c) Reconciliation (0 %Ik
2005 2004
ZREFRAE | FENE
Number Number
of shares of shares
B H Bty B H
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — F {E 5t 5 4 B AR B F) 7
used in calculating basic earning/ (loss) (B $8) 1 3 38 s o e
per share T H # 224,496,000 |224,496,000
Deemed issue of ordinary shares for no R AT AR
consideration 900,000 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  F {F 5t 5% 4 I 8 W6 & 71,7
used in calculating diluted earnings/ (loss) (B $8) 1o 38 38 s o e
per share T # # 225,396,000 |224,496,000
16 DIVIDEND 16 Ji& &
2005 2004
ZREHE | ZFFNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT WM T
Proposed final dividend of HK$Nil cents A A BE NI A B R R 0 A B
(2004: HK$4.40 cents) per ordinary share (ZZF Y4 45 R A 0 i 5
o J 7 % ot e 4.40110) - 9,878
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17 B8 ¥

The Group
L |

2005 2004
“RENAE | CFFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T
At 1 January A—H—H 17,601 17,501
Revaluation gains Al 4 - 100
At 31 December wt+—H=+—H 17,601 17,601

Investment properties of the Group were revalued at 31 December
2005 on the basis of their market value by A.G. Wilkinson &
Associates, an independent firm of chartered surveyors, employed

by the Group. Valuations were based on current prices in an active

market for all properties.

At 31 December 2005, the Group had no unprovided contractual

obligation for future repairs and maintenance.

The Group’s interest in investment properties and other properties

at their net book values are analysed as follows:

FL 25 5 2 2 75 O £

B RTAT LA 2 B TR A ik YE A AT T Al

RoFRBRAET A=+ H o A E R A HE
16 0 DR 32 37 % A1 A Ao R B4 5 K0 T AE

7 S [ 7E B0 ) 36 0 M A5 e HC R TR R (00 T A

T

The Group
A4 M
2005 2004
CZRRHAE | ZEFN4E
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T Mo
Outside Hong Kong, held on: e W LA A
Leases of over 50 years 504 2 FL &) 2,050 2,050
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 104F £ 504 2 fl &) 15,551 15,551
17,601 17,601
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

IEE/ERN +- 9 &4

The Group A 4R M
Leasehold Furniture Plant and
Construction Leasehold improvements and  machinery Motor
in progress buildings fi§  equipment Ri%i & vehicles Total
ERIH NEL RS nEEE  GRESH B S e By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ol o ol o BT BT BT BT
At 1January 2004 RZFFWE-A—H
Cost or valuation A T 1 - 29,780 14,360 27,187 13,001 482 85,410
Accumulated depreciation 24 % - (6,862) (13,870) (26,569) (10,836) (482) (58,619)
Net book value, as restated ~ JET 1% (6> # &7 - 22,918 490 1,218 2,165 - 26,791
Net book value e 0 5 5
at 1 January 2004, RFEFNE-]
as previously reported —Ho R 2R - 70,086 490 1,218 2,165 - 73,959
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 4 (B 3HiER)
B178 - (47,168) - - - - (47,168)
Net book value e 1
at 1 January 2004, REZEENE-]
as restated —H % EF - 22,918 490 1,218 2,165 - 26,791
Additions "E - = 795 508 764 1,244 3,311
Depreciation & - (595) (775) (885) (1,886) (249) (4,390)
Disposals & - = = 2) = - 2)
Net book value at e 1 5
31 December 2004, RZFZENETZA
as restated =t =R RES = 22,323 510 839 1,043 995 25,710
At 31 December 2004 RZFENEFZN
=t—H
Cost or valuation A 3 £ B 29,780 15,155 28,210 13,765 1,263 88,173
Accumulated depreciation 2T & = (7,457) (14,645) (27,371) (12,722) (268) (62,463)
Net book value, as restated [ 1 1% (8 # & 5] = 22,323 510 839 1,043 995 25,710
Net book value i 7 (8
at 1 January 2005, NEEHE—R
as previously reported —H- R 2R - 72,150 510 839 1,043 995 75,537
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 {4 (F it & 5t 1)
F17%; - (49,827) - - - - (49,827)
Net book value e 4 (8
at 1 January 2005, RZZZHE—A
as restated —H & = 22,323 510 839 1,043 995 25,710
Additions hE 11,102 = 2,560 910 147 461 15,180
Depreciation i - (595) (544) (469) (393) (250) 2,251)
Write off/disposals e/ e - - - - - (299) (299)
Net book value e 4 (8
at 31 December 2005 REZZEEF A
Sl 11,102 21,728 2,526 1,280 797 907 38,340
At31 December 2005 REZZEEFT A
=S
Cost or valuation HAR S A 11,102 29,780 17,715 28,907 13,912 1,334 102,750
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFHiE = (8,052) (15,189) (27,627) (13,115) (427) (64,410)
Net book value I i 11,102 21,728 2,526 1,280 797 907 38,340
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 P 3% BE N Rt i (40
(cont'd)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2005 of the R FERET A=+ H o Bl B E R A
above assets of the Group is as follows: SAGE A HT T

Furniture Plant and

Construction ~ Leasehold ~ Leasehold and  machinery Motor
inprogress  buildings improvements  equipment Wb & vehicles Total
ERILH MEHE HEBERE  BERRRE B % A L By

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BET BHT

At cost A 11,102 29,780 17,715 28,907 13,912 1,334 102,750
At valuation - 2005 - —%2T0F - - - - - -

11,102 29,780 17,715 28,907 13,912 1,334 102,750
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2004 of the A TEFENE S A=+ B Bl EE R AR
above assets of the Group is as follows: AL E A HT T

Furniture Plant and

Construction ~ Leasehold  Leasehold and  machinery Motor
inprogress  buildings improvements  equipment W% & vehicles Total
ERLH HEHE AumiEl  GRRSH B S T B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BHTT BRI BRI BRI BRI

At cost A - 29,780 15,155 28,210 13,765 1,263 88,173
At valuation - 2004 - —FTNE - = = = = = 3

- 29,780 15,155 28,210 13,765 1,263 88,173
Construction in progress represents the construction cost paid HERIEREEAEER _FZAFT_A=1—
and payable in relation to the new factory of the Group in H A o B0 R o B 2 3 e S 2 B A A 2
Mainland China as at 31 December 2005. HIH o
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19 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights
represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net book

value are analysed as follows:

19 L6 b Hl B - 3 ) A
4 S L1 T - 0 )R W2 45 T
AL S e HCBE AT 3 (.99 47 1 -

The Group
AR
2005 2004
TRBHAE | CTEIE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
W T BWET T
In Hong Kong, held on: TEF WA
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 104FE F 504 2 fH &) 46,572 47,533
Outside Hong Kong, held on: 1E 7k UAMFRE A
Leases over 50 years 504 2 F A 2,884 2,935
49,456 50,468

At 31 December 2005, leasehold land with a carrying value of
HK$43,337,000 (2004: HK$44,221,000) held by a subsidiary of the
Group was charged to a bank to obtain banking facilities.

MRoEEZRAE+T A=+ 0 RTERUIER
{H %) # ¥ 43,337,00000 (= FF U 45« 49 i ¥
44,221,00070) B9 FH B + HbAE 2 FE 4

The Group
A H
2005 2004
ZERRHAE | _RENE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T T T
Net book value at 1 January A — A — H Z R
— as previously reported — AR B - =
- effect of adopting HKAS 17 — B CR & wHHERD 1798 50,468 51,480
— as restated — % EF 50,468 51,480
Amortisation 6 55 (1,012) (1,012)
Net book value at 31 December Rt HA=+—HE&EFHE 49,456 50,468
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 WY& A § # &
The Company
Y NG|
2005 2004
ZRRIAR ZEEYE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Investment, at cost & i A 86,131 86,131
Amounts due from subsidiaries B i 2 7 R R 107,254 105,649
193,385 191,780
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free WEF A8 2 0 22 Rk 2y SR AR ~ S IS S T 2 3
and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 AZFFERFEF A=t H AR AT £
December 2005: A Pl X = 1 N
Group equity
interest held by
Place of AEEERU T A Issued and paid
incorporation/ Bt $ St A B 22 up ordinary
operations The share capital
Name of company H3L ) A Company Subsidiaries C¥#17 %  Principal activities
AW 5B BRI Y /AT WY 8 4 W) BREWBA FEEE
% %
Anagram Company British Virgin Islands - 100 US$1  Investment holding
Limited BB R LS 1% HREER
Arnhold & Company, Shanghai/Hong Kong - 100 HK$20,000,000  Trading and
Limited L/ F 1 #20,000,0007C engineering
BRI A R T Hh R LH#
Arnhold & Company Shanghai - 100 US$200,000  Trading
(Shanghai) Limited* L 200,000%7C B 5 LIF
B M B R 5
(b)) A R =
Arnhold (B.VL.) British Virgin Islands/ 100 - US$1,000  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong L,000£7T  HEHER
BN e
Arnhold China Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Inactive
G B A PR A ] R Wi WEEE
Arnhold Construction British Virgin - 100 US$1  Inactive
Chemicals Limited Islands 1250 WBEEE
) el
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

20 WHs A vl e % (5)

Group equity
interest held by
Place of AEMBBYT A Issued and paid
incorporation/ Pt 4 I8¢ A B 4 up ordinary
operations The share capital
Name of company 313 A Company Subsidiaries E#17 %  Principal activities
SRR BEMY A4 W& 2 5 SRwEBA  BEEH
% %
Arnhold Design Centres Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Retailing
Limited U wior
TR AR BA R
Arnhold Distributors Bermuda - 100 HK$100,000  Distributorship
Limited ARE #%5100,0000C  K8H
Arnhold Investments Hong Kong - 100 Ordinary HK$1  Investment holding
Limited 7 s Non-voting deferred ~ # & /1%
EHBEEARAF HK$100,000,000
5 i s W 1T
I 45 22 B AR A I
it 1,000,0007C
Arnhold Kitchens Hong Kong - 100 HK$4 Inactive
Limited s Wi BREE
A B A R A
Arnhold (Macau) Macau - 100 MOP25,000  Trading of
Limited e i ¥ 25,000 construction
(R A RA A materials
BEMBHE Y
Arnhold Marble Hong Kong - 100 HK$12  Trading and
China Limited 7 127 management
TRMEATE AR A services
B 5 B B
Arnhold Marble Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Supplyand
Limited s g VT installation of
TR ERAHRA T natural stones
HE e K %2 %5 o
Arnhold Properties British Virgin Islands/ - 100 US$1  Property holding
(B.V.L) Limited Hong Kong 1£5T  WERHA
R IEL R B
Arnhold Stone Hong Kong = 100 HK$2  Dormant
Works Limited Rt BT HiEEE
LR A A R A
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

20 Hi¥ )& 2\ B8 (41

Group equity
interest held by
Place of AEMBBYT AR Issued and paid
incorporation/ Pt 4 I8¢ A B 4 up ordinary
operations The share capital
Name of company 313 A Company Subsidiaries E#17 %  Principal activities
EER BEMY A4 W& 2 BMRBBA  FEEH
% %
Bain d’Or Buildings Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Inactive
Material Limited U Wi HEEE
L REEM AR A
Bain d’Or Inc. USA - 100 US$2,000  Inactive
E3 2,000%70 WA
Bain d’Or Trading Hong Kong - 100 HK$1  Inactive
Limited U wiE T HaEEE
Bostik Hong Kong Hong Kong - 100 HK$1  Inactive
Limited 7 i BT EEEE
Diction Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Property holding
i) 15 A PR A F 7 i BT WERA
Dongguan Arnhold Dongguan - 100 RMB17,546,951  Natural stones
Marble Limited* HAE N R 17,546,951 cutting and polishing
WEE LR b A R w RAKA B E K T
Grandful Limited Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Property holding
AR AR 2 A 7 W w2 WERA
Palatial Properties British Virgin Islands/ - 100 US$1  Property holding
Limited Hong Kong 1R WESA
IR LR
Silvermark Trading Hong Kong - 100 HK$1  Inactive
Limited % it BT MEEE
Tradebond Investments Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Property holding
Limited T w2 WERA
BHRBEEHRAA
Worldpole Investments Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Property holding
Limited 7 2T WERH
AR EHRA A
< Wholly-owned foreign enterprise incorporated in Mainland China. R I R A G L 2 A A A A
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21 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

21 8 2 ) BE

The Group
L |
2005 2004
“RENAE | CFFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T
Share of net liabilities JE A B A E - (153)
Amount due from the associate W8 oy W) 2 R 64 418
64 265
The Group’s interest in its associate which is unlisted, was as AL A A F OF B R T
follows:
2005 2004
TREFRAE | CEFFNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T T
Assets B 1,179 1,907
Liabilities =N 1,684 2,060
Revenues PN 1,481 3,657
Loss for the year AAE e 4R (351) (1,065)
No dividend was received during the year from the associate (2004: AN AF BE NI S B A B 2 AR AR (2 &Y
Nil). The amount due from the associate is unsecured, interest AF M) o BB A R 2 R A MR AT - S B R fe [
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. JE 1R

The Group does not recognize losses amounting to HK$351,000
in 2005 as the Group’s share of losses in the associate has exceeded
the interest in the associate. (2004: recognised loss of
HK$1,065,000).

The interest in the associate represents a 20% interest in the issued
share capital of Kingspan China Limited, which is incorporated
in Hong Kong and engaged in the thermal insulation and panel
business.

A 45 [ Sl 0 Tl A 2R — R R LA T W A m A
s 45140 vk 15 351,000 » HE 5 PR A8 1 A% % T AR A5 T
BAFEED B HEZ B AR
(= 2 %I04 B 4G B A R 4R A I
1,065,0007C) °

B 2 I HE AR 16 1R AT BT P B AT PR W 2 BB AT
JEe A 2 209 M 45 o 5% 4> W) 7E 75 s A AL - e 2R
i P 0 e 3R A58 % R AR SE S
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22 NON-TRADING SECURITIES 22 JEEHE B #E R

The Group

g
2005 2004
SRFHSE | CFENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT | BT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost I ETRE HRE A E - 7,800
Less: provision for impairment loss I8t - 9B (L A - (7,800)
23 OTHER INVESTMENTS 23 Hib#t ¥
The Group
YL
2005 2004

SERRIAE | RFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHT I T

Unlisted club debentures, at fair value

I b RS 1R A TEE - 2,288

24 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIALASSETS 24 w2 W% e

The Group
A H

2005 2004

“ERRAE | CERNE

HKS$’000 HK$’000

BT T

At 1 January H—HA—H 10,088 -

Less: Revaluation deficit transfer to reserves I+ T Al Ml 4R T S

(Note 33) (Mt 7#33) (334) -

Less: Provision for impairment loss o RRCRIER L] (7,800) =

At 31 December A+=_A=+—H 1,954 -

Available-for-sale financial assets represent the unlisted equity AL B A AR R R+

securities and unlisted club debenture of the Group and are stated HE+—HERAFEESRZ F A AR E K&
at fair value at year ended 31 December 2005. T &R
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25

26

INVENTORIES 25 i+ 1%
The Group
A4
2005 2004
CRBHAE | ZFFNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Merchandise P A 14,184 9,381
Consumable inventories HEMAE 3,268 2,038
Raw materials JEAE kL 1,262 719
Work in progress TE 3 i 416 273
19,130 12,411
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 26 BEFL
The Group
A4 M
2005 2004
ZRBHAE | EFNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT Mo
Contract costs incurred plus attributable HEA A A
profits less foreseeable losses to date JE A i A ek mT R R 148,046 303,123
Less: progress billings to date I B R g A (152,235) (308,306)
(4,189) (5,183)
Included in current assets/ (liabilities): WEEE (AE) ©#F:
Due from customers on construction contracts MWK P 2 #2544 5
(included in construction contracts) (B FEIEEES H) 13 753
Due to customers on construction contracts MEAT %5 2 B8 & A 50AH
(included in trade and other payables) (95 7 JRE A BR 3 B M At 18 £ ) (4,202) (5,936)
(4,189) (5,183)

At 31 December 2005, the net retention held by customers for
contract work included in trade and other receivables of the Group
as disclosed in note 27 amounted to HK$4,826,000 (2004:
HK$5,503,000)

At 31 December 2005, there were no advances received from
customers for contract work included in other payables of the
Group as disclosed in note 30 (2004: Nil).

N EERET A —H BHEFFEAZA
#) TR A B8 4 (H 5 i %5 4,826,0000T (= F E Y
4 i 1 5,503,00000) > B AL TE Bt 5E 270 K 8E 2
A 2 (B R o B 3K B At B i 3k 2 1

REEERE A=+ —H o W30 2
7S 1 [ EL At R A R S e s 5 AR ) % WO
ZHEAMH (CRRWE: FEHEET) o
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27 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group The Company
G L LY

2005 2004 2005 2004

CRRAE | ZEFNE | ZRRAE | FFNE

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BWFI T oC BT T T

Trade receivables JRE Wi 5 R 3k 63,252 71,247 - -

Retention receivables JE N fR B4 4 M 2K 8,232 10,983 - -

Receivables from related parties JRE i A - B 3K

(note 37) (Ht737) 520 307 - -

Less: provision for impairment of receivables i < i€ it 1% Wl (8 4% i (3,730) (5,570) - -
Net trade and retention receivables JRE Wi e S B Wi A A

WS 68,274 76,967 - -

Prepayments and other receivables TE A5 B 3 R L Ah HE Wi 2K 2,914 8,157 254 265

71,188 85,124 254 265

Trade and other receivables (which include trade and retention
receivables) had the following aging analysis:

R WA SR T e At B R (4 B ol B o R S R
B ) ZIRE M AT AT

The Group
y: e Y|

2005 2004

CRBHAE | EFNF

HKS$’000 HK$’000

BT T

Current A 781 4 30,953 24,895
One to three months overdue wmi— 2 =M A 22,651 27,370

More than three months overdue i R A =R H

but less than twelve months overdue 0 1 | 3,139 9,511
Overdue more than twelve months bzl i e | 15,261 20,761
Total trade and other receivables JE Wi B B MR 3k I PR BE & AR 72,004 82,537
Less: provision for impairment of receivables Jif + JRE A RS X ek (L 4% A (3,730) (5,570)
Net trade and retention receivables JE W R K S I A PR B A TR TR AR 68,274 76,967
Prepayments and other receivables LA 3T B H A RE s K 2,914 8,157
71,188 85,124

Debts from construction contracts are due when architect
certificates are issued and other debts are due normally from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances that are long overdue are
normally requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted.
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28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28 fik W1 H

At 31 December 2005
“RFH4AT A=Z1+—H
Assets Liabilities
<73 =10
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT

Forward foreign exchange contracts — 7z B A BE 5 4 —
not qualified as hedges AN B 51 (1,283)
At 1 January 2005, the fair values of the foreign exchange forward WoETAE—H—H i %1,738,00000 & # ¥
contracts in the amounts of HK$1,738,000 and HK$350,000 were 350,0007T 1 % 1 A1 BE 5 49 24 V- & 4 7l 5 8L 5
recognized as assets and liabilities, respectively. %R KA i
Details of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts MoEETESF A=+ —H - AEEFAHH
held by the Group as at 31 December 2005 are disclosed in note A B 953 A1 T & 40 7E B 5136 B EE o 5% 5F B A
36. These contracts expire through 2006. A BRI N i o
The net unrealized fair value loss on foreign exchange contracts MoEEHTELZA=+—H - EZBINEGHZ
as of 31 December 2005 which are not qualified as hedges has REBAFEEFEER (KFEGHEM) SRS
been accounted for in the profit and loss accounts. FFHER -
29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29 B4 RB4% B
The Group The Company
A A w
2005 2004 2005 2004
TRBLE | CERNE | SRRHE | CFENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#WT I BT T #WT I T T
Bank deposits with original maturity J5 A B H A = A
of three months or less s PLF 2 8R17 T 73K 46,567 37,541 - -
Cash at bank and in hand AT R R BL4& 23,852 46,832 115 74
70,419 84,373 115 74
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30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30 M A M sk B 3L il HE A K

The Group The Company
AR A2 W
2005 2004 2005 2004
CRRLE | CFTNE | DRRRE | EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
#WFL oy BT T T
Trade and bills payables JE A 5% i B B A+ 22 1 39,473 33,906 - -
Accruals and other payables T A5 2 1) B K At B £5F 3 26,514 37,530 1,339 1,217
Advances received from customers EFHEM 2,839 2,876 - -
68,826 74,312 1,339 1,217
Less: non-current portion: 3 3 8 7 A
Accrual and other payables JRE A5 A R L i B £ K (438) - - -
68,388 74,312 1,339 1,217

All of the above trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year except the non-current payables which are
expected to settle within five years from the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables (which include trade and bills payables)

had the following aging analysis:

) R AR e 2 AT AN

W I A T R Ak R TR 0 A R iR M AR A
AT B b 7 A T A R s e H At B AT 3 T 4
—AE R AT o

R ARF R 2 B L A R AR K (40358 I A B2 5 % MR A

The Group
A4

2005 2004
CRBHAE | ETNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
YT BT T
Due within one month or on demand — i A A B 2 2 A R 2 4 31,230 28,326
Due after one month but within three months — i A A& H =R H k2 7,299 5,077
Due after three months =A% B 944 503
Total trade and bills payables JE A5H B2 5 Mk B RE AT 22 9 A A 39,473 33,906
Accruals and other payables JE AsH 2 Y J HC Ath R £5F 2K 26,514 37,530
Advances received from customers K5 HE AT 2,839 2,876
68,826 74,312

Less: non-current portion: Ik < FF Vi B A A7
Accrual and other payables JE A5 2 S L Ath 1 £5F 2k (438) =
68,388 74,312
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31 PROVISIONS 31 %4
Employee
Long service leave
payments entitlements Total
T 300 o 4 2 B = 18 ) Wy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T W T T T T
At 1 January 2005 BoEERFE—~H—H 770 918 1,688
(Write back)/additional provisions (M) HAL B (96) 1,384 1,288
Less: Amounts utilised I - OB A 3R - (1,039) (1,039)
(Credited)/charged to consolidated A& G HGE X
profit and loss account (BE) /408 (96) 345 249
Less: Amounts settled i - 2SRRI - (207) (207)
Net effect on provisions 346 (96) 138 42
At 31 December 2005 REZZHAETFZA=+—H 674 1,056 1,730
32 SHARE CAPITAL 32 JB A
2005 2004
SRR RN E
Authorised Authorised
by %
Number of Number of
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
A 18 i £ 9 W 0.107C 2 3% B Bt B 6y % H #WT I i 3 4 H T T
At 1 January and R—H—Hxk
at 31 December +ZA=+—H 800,000,000 80,000 | 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid Issued and fully paid
CHITRUAR ERTREHMRE
Number of Number of
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
5 I8 £ 98 W 0. 1070 =2 3% 0 Bt JBe By % H BT 3 ¥ B T T
At 1 January and R=HA—Hk
at 31 December +ZA=+—H 224,496,000 22,450 | 224,496,000 22,450
A share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was approved and adopted RAFI RN ZFEAEL A +— B 2 BHREE

by the shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company
on 11 July 2002 under which the Board may, at its discretion, invite
eligible persons to take up options to subscribe for shares of the

Company.

Ry b v R bR A — TR S ) ([ Rwt ) o
B EEEAMER TS @A LR
A ) I o
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32 SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd)

Details of options granted to directors and employees of the

32 JBEAR (

#)

R TR RR A B AR A W H 2 R R H

Company under the Scheme for the year 2005 were as follows: P i R 2 SR 0
Outstanding Outstanding
options as at Exercised/  options as at
1 January lapsed/ 31 December
2005 cancelled 2005
ZEETA Granted during the ZZZ%i4  Subscription
—H—H during the year +~H=+1—H price
Date of R AT B year JRAEMATHE R AT B per share
options granted 5 0 B HE 1) 2 W I TR AE 1 42 i 1 BE ik 8 2 W I 5 1 Ik
HKS$
18 September 2003  “EE =N T AH 3,700,000 - - 3,700,000 0.500
19 November 2004 ZERENESY—A LA 3,700,000 - - 3,700,000 0.602
21 November 2005 “EELEF At A - 4,500,000 - 4,500,000 0.700
7,400,000 4,500,000 - 11,900,000

Details of options granted to directors and employees of the

R MR R AN F R R B

Company under the Scheme for the year 2004 were as follows: 2t BBOHE 2 SR AR
Outstanding Outstanding
options as at Exercised/  options as at
1 January lapsed/ 31 December
2004 cancelled 2004
“EENg Granted during the —“ZZW4  Subscription
—H—H during the year +~H=+—H price
Date of MR AT B year RAEMATEE R AT B 2 per share
options granted 2 0 SR HE H ik e TR AF 1 42 iy fie dg ik 8 ik B 4 5 I8 8 W
HK$
iogica
18 September 2003 ZERE=ZFRATAA 7,200,000 - (3,500,000) 3,700,000 0.500
19 November 2004 ZEZFENE+S—H+HILH = 3,700,000 - 3,700,000 0.602
7,200,000 3,700,000 (3,500,000) 7,400,000

Based on the binomial option pricing model, the fair values of
the options granted on 18 September 2003, 19 November 2004
and 21 November 2005 were HK$0.248, HK$0.141 and HK$0.180
respectively. However, since the valuation relies on subjective
assumptions such as the estimated volatility of the share price,
the binomial option pricing model does not necessarily provide
areliable measure of the fair value of the options.
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32 SHARE CAPITAL (cont'd)

The weighted average assumptions used are as follows:

2 BeA (#)

TR T 24 B ARG AN

Options granted on

21 November 19 November 18 September
2005 2004 2003

i JBe HE 32 oy 39
ZRBTAE e 2 JUES RREL
+—H=+—H +—H+H AA+AH
Risk-free interest rate (in %) 9 a1 B ] 22 (%) 4.4 2.8 3.8
Expected life (in years) HEHEW () 5.0 6.0 6.9
Volatility (in %) 1 (%) 51.2 49.2 77.5
Expected dividend per share (cents) 78 & & IX & (fil) 4.4 4.4 4.4

At the dates before the options were granted, 17 September 2003,
18 November 2004 and 20 November 2005, the market values per
share were HK$0.50, HK$0.60 and HK$0.70 respectively.

The options granted on 18 September 2003 can be exercised in
two instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 September
2005 and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time
between 1 September 2006 and 30 August 2010.

The options granted on 19 November 2004 can be exercised in
two instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November
2006 and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time
between 1 November 2007 and 30 August 2010.

The options granted on 21 November 2005 can be exercised in
two instalments, 50% of which at any time between 1 November
2007 and 30 August 2010 and the remaining 50% at any time
between 1 November 2008 and 30 August 2010.

Employee share option benefits represent fair value at grant date
of share options issued under the Scheme that amortised to the
profit and loss account during the year disregarding whether the
options have been vested/exercised or not.

R R — B F R =LA +LH-
TEENES—HFAEEEELET—A
= B B A BT (R4 A 2 HE B 0.500T ~ i T
0.607T J% #5 ¥ 0.707T -

W EEZAEJUA N R 2 B R AT 2
A7 fd > W A 2 50% AT R EHAE LA —H &
TR —FENHAZ+ B IR E AT 8T 2 50%
Al EENENLA-HEZFE -FENA
=1 H IR AT

W BTN+ — A JUH 8 2 BB AT 4
ATl W HE 2 50% ATl — R R ANE T —H—
Az & —RENH=+HIEWHATHE 5T 2
50%0 H —FEELFE+—H-HEZFE-FF
VAN = It ol & T R

W EERAEF—H ot H A% 2 B 2
47 18 > 5 B HE 2 50% AT 1 B ELEF— A
—AEF-FENA =+ B I BRT
Z50% 0 Bl —FENE+—H - HEZE-F4F
AH =+ B ik A7l

{58 PR AR i A AR o s PO T A 452 e 1 38
N TRLTI S 45 1A A 48 4 R PO R 8 (A 7 % 1 ik
REC PR AT L) o
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33 RESERVES 33 i fli
Employee
Other Available- share-
properties  Investment for-sale based
revaluation revaluation investment compensation
Share reserve reserve reserve reserve  Retained Contributed
premum  JiHE  REHE  WEREEZ  EHEH  earnings surplus Total
Beories  EMEH O EHRH RHEEME O EMEE  REEN  RAER By
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT B¥TIT EBTT BEFX B¥Fx B¥TT BETT BEFx
At 1January 2004 REZFEME—-F—H
- as previously reported - HBEEHR 92,389 609 - - - 81,872 808 175,678
- effect of adopting -Rzwe
-HKAS 17 — (i a st 175 - (609) - - - 5,251 - 4,642
- HKFRS 2 —(FBRBRGEA) B2 - - - - 114 (114) - -
At 1January 2004 REZFEME—-F—H
- as restated — B 92,389 - - - 114 87,009 808 180,320
Surplus on revaluation AR - 739 4 - - - - 783
Reversal of reserve KA (B THEND
onadoption of HKAS 17 #178k 2 E i 1l - (739) - - - - - (739)
Loss attributable to W 16 s
shareholders - - - - - (860) - (860)
Proposed dividend BRI S - - - - - (9,878) - (9,878)
Employee share-based [ A == e fE At 2 AR A
compensation benefits - - - - 416 - - 416
At 31 December 2004 RZZFENEFZA=+—H
- as restated &5 92,389 = 44 = 530 76,271 808 170,042
At 1January 2005 REZZLE-A—H
- as previously reported R ER 92,389 1,348 44 - - 74,483 808 169,072
- effect of adopting -ReRE
-HKAS 17 — (B e st 175 - (1,348) = = = 2,318 = 970
- HKAS 40 — (BN Fa0% 3 = (44) - - 4 - -
- HKEFRS 2 — (TR B S ) 56 288 = = = = 530 (530) - -
- opening adjustment —H (B AR F395E 2
of HKAS 39 LR = = = = = 1,388 = 1,388
At 1 January 2005, REZZERE—H—H
- as restated — %7 92,389 - - - 530 71,703 808 171,430
Profit attributable to TR e ff
shareholders - - - - - 1,624 - 1,624
Employee share-based & & = B it 8 2 A
compensation benefits - - - - 570 - - 570
Revaluation deficit & (s = = - (334) - - - (334)
At 31 December 2005 REZRLA
+ZAZ+-H 92,389 = = (334) 1,100 79,327 808 173,290
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33 RESERVES (cont’d) 33 fifi ffi (%0
The Company YN Share Retained  Contributed
premium earnings surplus Total
JBe B i £50 OB 7 B i 24 By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T T T T T
At 1 January 2004 RZEENE-—H 92,389 2,405 75,067 169,861
Profit for the year A B ¥ A - 10,469 - 10,469
Proposed dividend RIS - (9,878) - (9,878)
At 31 December 2004 REEENEF A=+ —H 92,389 2,996 75,067 170,452
Loss for the year AEEEH - (487) - (487)
At 31 December 2005 RoRBA%ET+-A=+—H 92,389 2,509 75,067 169,965

The Group’s profit for the year retained of HK$1,624,000 (2004:
retained loss of HK$860,000, as restated) excluded a loss retained
by an associate of HK$351,000 since the Group does not recognize
further loss as the Group’s share of loss in an associate has
exceeded the interest in the associate. (2004: included the retained
loss of HK$1,065,000).

The distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2005,
under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$77,576,000 (2004: HK$78,063,000).

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the excess of the
nominal value of the shares of Arnhold (B.V.I1.) Limited and the
nominal value of the deferred shares of Arnhold Investments
Limited acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefore pursuant to the Group’s
re-organization in December 1993.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
undistributed excess of the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefore pursuant to the Group’s reorganization in
December 1993. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus is distributable.

A B A T 2 AR R U R A 2 9 6 1,624,00000 (.
TR0 AR {1 B G 1B 05 %9860,0000G > #E EF) >
A 7% S A T 2 ) 2 Ml TR 0 B R LA R
N E] 2 W A > WA BB T N AR R R AR A U A I
BN F R A 351,000 0 (Y 4E LR
1 B3 5 18 %9 95 % 1,065,0000C ) ©

MRoEEREFTH =+ H> AN AR 5
B — JLN — 4R Ak AT R A L R U U
77,576,00070 ( — & % U 4F : # % 78,063,0007C) ©

A4 B 2 BB R L 95 5 A Arnhold (B.V.1.)
Limited2 i {75 1A (B B8 22 51 8 & A R 7 2 3 4E
et EE @ AN A AR — UL =8+ H £
A AT 2 B (FE £ s ¥ bl By ) T (B 2
Bitho

AN F) 2 TR R R AR AR S R A ) 2 B
FEBEAAFARE - =F+ - HLEEA
AT 2 B By (LA A 5% 55 B B 24 W 2 6 ¥ (6
T {H 2 R P IR LB - AR A A8 — LN — 4R A
%o HMBRT T R
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34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax liabilities was calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a principal taxation
rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%).

The movement to the deferred income tax liabilities during the
year is as follows:

34 ¥E %L Pr f5 B8 11 4k
A AL T 450 TEUBR A L6 0 ol S I R 2 4 R R R
17.5% ( . FF P4 1 17.5%) 1F 2 s o

RS BT f Bl A (U 4F R 2 B R

Accelerated
depreciation
allowance Revaluation
T 2 97 £ of properties Total
% BL B CREIES B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T oc
At 1 January 2004 AEENE -] —H 367 387 754
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 P g R D
FIThRZ B8 58 (387) (329)
At 31 December 2004 RoFZENFEFA=Z+—H 425 - 425
Deferred income tax charged to the BB A ARG IHE XA
consolidated profit and loss account S = = =
At 31 December 2005 R -RREETAZT—H 425 - 425
The amounts shown in the consolidated balance sheet include TEAR B W E ARRSIIR 2 &A1
the following:
The Group
A AR
(restated)
(H#741)
2005 2004
ZREIAE ZRRPYLE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled I 1248 B AE R 2
after more than 12 months R A T 75 B AR 425 425
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34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 34 ¥E%Et P4 865 (&%)
(cont’d)

The potential deferred income tax assets which have not been

accounted for in the financial statements amount to:

3 A R B S AR TR 2 T R S A

The Group
AL H

2005 2004
ZRRBRAE | ZERNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BWT I T T
Decelerated depreciation allowance U AT S B A 183 233
Other timing differences HAth R 2% 10,715 13,323
10,898 13,556

35 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2005, there were contingent liabilities in

35 ¥R £
(@ MW_ZEZEZHF+_HA=+—H -mREaEW

respect of the following: Ik
The Group The Company
A4 AR
2005 2004 2005 2004
CERLAE | CETWE | ZRFRE | CFEEE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T #WT L T T
Guarantees for credit facilities granted AR B 8 2 7 1)
by a bank on behalf of subsidiaries SRAT P A B AR - = 229,000 222,000

(b)

Certain subsidiaries have given undertakings to banks that
they will perform certain contractual non-financial
obligations to third parties. In return, the banks have
provided performance bonds and letters of guarantee to
third parties on behalf of these subsidiaries. As at
31 December 2005, the amount of guarantees outstanding
was HK$2,400,000 (2004: HK$2,500,000).

(b) % T B 2 = %G 1 SR AT R e & SR = B
TETHBBEEZ &4 BT ZERITE
T AR R AT B B A w5 = O R B A
PRas R E N R ERE T A=+ —
H o ¥ % 4 %8 5 715 %5 2,400,00000 (=&
4 5 ¥ 2,500,0007C) ©
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36 COMMITMENTS 36 R

(a) Commitments under operating lease (a) MEBAHZRIE
WZBEREFTH =+ —H> AEFERIE
AS T B 82 LA ME AT 2 H % BB IR A 4 A

At 31 December 2005, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows: BN :
The Group
A4
2005 2004
“RBHAE | CFEN4E
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Land and buildings o R A
— Not later than one year — A —4F N i T 1,710 2,330
— Later than one year and I I e R ]
not later than five years 568 1,500
2,278 3,830

At 31 December 2005, the Group had future aggregate

minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable

HoRBREFT A=+ —H AEERE
R T 7 LA R W 2 AR de AR AR 4 A

operating leases as follows: BN -
The Group
A H
2005 2004
TRERE | ZFFNE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BWT I T T
Land and buildings o R A
- Not later than one year — A4 N e 474 293
— Later than one year and — A TR T4 e i
not later than five years 194 142
668 435

102 ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED A% A B2 w]



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 285 e P

36 COMMITMENTS (cont’d)

36 & (4)

(b) Capital commitments for land and buildings (b) PBlEHEZEARRE
The Group
M
2005 2004
“RRRAE | CERNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bl T T T
Contracted but not provided for S FORER =1 F0] 4,412 900

At 31 December 2005, the Group had outstanding forward
exchange contracts to buy EUR4,874,000 (2004:
EURS3,986,000) at various rates totaling approximately
HK$46,146,000 (2004: HK$38,573,000); to buy JPY46,725,000
(2004: JPY97,926,000) at various rates totaling approximately
HK$3,142,000 (2004: HK$7,400,000); to buy GBP149,000
(2004: GBP659,000) at various rates totaling approximately
HK$2,207,000 (2004: HK$9,366,000); to buy US$1,171,000
(2004: US$4,500,000) at various rates totaling approximately

HK$9,092,000 (2004: HK$34,772,000).

W oEERAES A=+ —H > AEEEA
A 4 AN [r] BEE 2% % A 4,874,000 0 (—F Y
4 13,986,0000 7T ) 11 1 & B 1A 5 0 41 bE &
# H8 R AR 7 5 46,146,00000 ( X E YA
%) 45 %38,573,00070) ;4% A [ B 3 A
46,725,000 H Jo (=& &4 4 : 97,926,000 H
JG) B 1 A B HA i A SN BE 5 4 AR A R T R
3,142,00070 ( — & ZF P04 : 9 ¥ 7,400,000
JG) O TR BE W A 149,000 3% £
(= Z 2P 4F £ 659,0009% $2) [ 1 A 2 ] 3
WIAMEE & #) MR B 4 2 W 2,207,000 70
(= FZ DA 49 %5 9,366,00000) 5 7% AN [H]
T % i A 1,171,0003 J6 ( = ZF & [0 4F :
4,500,000 76) 14 1 A 31 1A 2 #A S0 FE 5 4 48
B A2 W 159,092,00070 ( FE A : i W
34,772,0007C) °
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions, which were carried out in

37 HAEREALZRY

VTR e 31 70 A 41 [ BELAT () N 7 o S s v o

the normal course of the Group’s business, are as follows: TTZERZS:
2005 2004
“RRRAE | CERNE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T
Sales of goods and services PR i BEL R S B
Administration fee received by LR A R F I A
Arnhold & Company, Limited W 2 AT B
from the associate (note a) (&t @) 420 948
Gross rental income received by AR A B2 W ) B A
Grandful Limited from the B 2 AR A A A
associate (note b) (Mt &t ®)) 264 264
Sales of goods to related party Ti) [ 78 A = & 5 T
(note c) (Bt 7 () 923 4,899
Purchases of goods and services i TR o B R S
Professional fee paid to related AT TERREANLHERA
party (note c) (Mt it ) 326 50
Key management compensation FEEHA B &
Salaries and other emoluments BT A Ko H Ath B 4 5,009 8,285
Discretionary bonus A % 16 AL 438 312
Year end bonus SERAE AT 194 161
Retirement schemes contribution FER AN I KA 333 442
Year-ended balance arising from sales of goods B R A A R
Receivable from related party JARE s I N R K 520 307
Receivable from the associate R ol Wt A 2 ) AR K 63 418

(a)

(b)

(©

Arnhold & Company, Limited provided management
services to the associate for which it charged an
administration fee at a fixed monthly amount.

During the year, the associate paid rental expenses of
HK$264,000 (2004: HK$264,000) to one of the subsidiaries
of the Group, Grandful Limited.

In addition to transactions with related companies as
disclosed above, professional fees of HK$326,000 (2004:
HK$50,000) were paid to a firm in which a non-executive
director is a partner. Besides, sales of construction materials
of HK$923,000 (2004: HK$4,899,000) were made to a listed
group of companies in which an independent non-executive
director is also a director of the listed group.

ARNHOLD HOLDINGS LIMITED A% A B2 w]

(a)

(b)

(c)

L AT RS 4R A B AR S T L A
3 A A WCHR [ 2 AT B #

/RSN IR i /N Il i = 2l
264,00070 (&2 Y 4F : #5 %5 264,00000) T
— [ A B 2 B A R AR A R A ] o

W I it B A B N ) 2 58 B A > AR A A 1y —
FANFA—ZRPTEFRLHEBAZAH
S AT EZE R A i 5 326,00000 (- F &Y
4 50,0000C) 5 B AREE ) — Bl
7 ) 4 ) 6F A SR M BL VS 15 923,0000T
(U 4F : 4k %5 4,899,00000) » AR ] —
GRS RATHEEIS g i E R
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37

38

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont'd)

It is the intention of the directors of the Company that the Group
will continue its business relationships with related parties under
similar bases as adopted in previous years. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the transactions with the related
companies were carried out in the ordinary course of business

on normal commercial terms.

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 8 March 2006, Arnhold & Company, Limited (“ACL”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Bostik Australia Pty Ltd.
(“Bostik”) and Bostik Holding Hong Kong Limited (the “Joint
Venture”) entered into a shareholders agreement in relation to
the formation of the Joint Venture. The Joint Venture was set up
for the purpose of co-investing in a manufacturing company to
be established in Guangdong province of the PRC, and marketing
and distributing i) certain construction and distribution products
of Bostik in Guangdong province, Hong Kong and Macau and ii)
certain construction chemicals in Hong Kong and Macau.

The relative contributions of ACL and Bostik and their respective
interests in the share capital of the Joint Venture on completion
and their obligations to provide shareholders’ loans to the Joint
Venture are as follows:

37

38

BABREANLZRY ()

oA R 5 5 S LA U £ 7R 1 2 40 7 2
e SR B A S ST R - A 22 73
2 B B A R AT 2 50 T H 0
MR 3 R O A o

i H &I H

hERENEZANH AN A —REWME A A
BRI RA R ([%F]]) - Bostik Australia Pty Ltd.
(T Bostik]) Pl & Bostik Holding Hong Kong
Limited ([ &8 A 1) S AL G 8 A "l ET LR
oh sl (TR D) < oL &8 2 "l B 7k 3%
[F) 45 S % P BRI o R A ) A A D Sl ) I
R B s SO A B S S $6 Bostik A 22 5% ) 4
S i B i) I s TR P A I A B R SR AL B

[=]
2]zl

4% M| B Bostik#s H 7 7 8 24 Al AR N 2 4% B HA
HE i DL K HORE A 2 OB TTAR 4R

Number of
shares Aggregate
subscribed  subscription Percentage of Shareholder’s
Parties i 8 prices  shareholding loan
HESD] B 4 % H MR fSRahi JBe 3 £2
ACL LA 4,000 HK$4,000 40%  US$1,600,000
Bostik Bostik 6,000 HK$6,000 60%  US$2,400,000

In addition, ACL has transferred to the Joint Venture its business
in relation to the distribution of the construction chemicals
products of Bostik and related technical services in Hong Kong
and Macau at a total consideration of HK$853,386.

Completion took place on the same date of the Shareholders
Agreement.

7 4 R g L A A b B WL P 43 B Bostik i 4 1L
B LIRS IR 2 2 T A8 AR
il 8 1 5 ¥ 9 853,386T

JIe B 1% e B S  H M AE R — BB A .
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39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2005

Up to the date of approval of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting
period ended 31 December 2005 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements:

39 T A Ml 1% 8%
—“H=4+—H
W A 2k B0
i Y AE 55

T 22 S R A - 0 A
ELAEL A A T T 7 L B e R L3 S A T~
WA R RS SR AT S ASF—H Ik
00 T 2 8 S O e R 6 S R o 4R
ty

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
ELF H W ok 2 % B i
o w300 1A A 3

HKEFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
CF s T 705 S o 1 R 25 6% Resources
0 72 9 B 4R ST Al

HKFRS-Int 4
CF s S 055 5 1 D) o PR 5 49

contains a Lease

M —HAHERTEGHE

HKFRS-Int 5

Determining whether an Arrangement

1 January 2006
SEERAEA A

1 January 2006
—EENE—A—H

(F o8 T 5 415 Y6 ) e R 5 9%

HK(IFRIC)-Int 6
(At (I 8 B 5 o A5 o R
ZEE) ) e A6k

Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation
Funds

SR - 15 5 B AR 15 2 5 HE 4T A R

Liabilities arising from participating in a
specific market — Waste electrical and

electronic equipment
S UL T — B TE T ) R T T Rk M AR Y A

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits

— Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures
CHus gD 51998 (BRT) 1B B 48 R

— N B R AR R R A R

Amendments to HKAS 21 The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
— Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

G gt HERD 552158 (BRT) HESR 0

— A SETE 4 K

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement:
CR g et R 55395% (BT M T H - fERR K et &

— Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

— TE B4R 1 TR A D TR BE ) B A e e g

—The Fair Value Option
—EEUAPFEEAR

— Financial Guarantee Contracts

—MEERE X
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1 January 2006
—EENE—A—H

1 December 2005
“EERETH—H

1 January 2006
SETNE—H—H

1 January 2006
SEEAEA A

1 January 2006
“FEANE-A—H
1 January 2006
T RE—H—H
1 January 2006

FFAE—A A
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39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

39 LA MR

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FORTHE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING PERIOD ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2005 (cont’d)

BRE_E%
“H=1— HE@E@ﬁ,E
W A A B 15

i T AE 5 B (41)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RO B WISk % B4R
1 5t 300 A A
Amendments, as a consequence of the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment)
Ordinance 2005, to:
R 20054F (& s 23 ® (E5]) Bl HBOT 5IE7T
-HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2006
—(FW G EHERD H 198 B R R 2 5 ZEENRE-H—H
— HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2006
— CFHEE D 52798 3G O ST BB R “EEZRNE-H—H
— HKFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 January 2006
— CEB BB ELD SB35 mEA I “EEARFE—-H—H
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2007
R i B 5 S At B ) ) 25 75% BT R BEER “EEELE—-H—H

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Capital Disclosures

CHREGFHELD 158 (BFT) MBS EmN 251
— EA YR

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies (Amendment) Ordinance
2005 came into effect on 1 December 2005 and would be first
applicable to the Group’s financial statements for the period
beginning 1 January 2006.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations would be in the period of initial application, but
is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments, new
standards and new interpretations would have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

40 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the year were approved by the board
of directors on 25 March 2006.

1 January 2007
“ERLE-A—R

b BB A R A (EHT) Gl 1 — %
T AR — B A A A —
% AE — L — B A 00 1 0 B s o o AR
)iﬁo

A 4R T TEAE SRR 5% S G HT R e ) BRI B
YRR P U P 54 3 ALY 5 2B s (ELAP R BE e A 4 4
B RT ~ 5 U RN Ko w0 R 1 S A 4 I 1Y K8 B A
T B AR D e G A B o

40 3B B R AL B

HRGON FEENFEZH A H AT E
Z TR
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